



**DELANO SPORTSMEN'S CLUB
P O BOX 394
DELANO MN 55328-0394**

Dear Applicant,

Thank you for your interest in the Delano Sportsmen's Club.

The enclosed Constitution, By-Laws, and Range Rules are very important. Read them carefully. If you wish to apply for membership please fill out the enclosed application.

The club rules, regulations and dues are universally applied to all members.

The dues of the club are as outlined in the enclosed Constitution and By-Laws on page 6, item 1.

In addition to the materials enclosed you can access the club's web page at www.delanosportsmensclub.com or call Jan Kittok at 763-972-2989 for additional information.

We are a family oriented club. Your membership is for all members of your family including your spouse and children 18 years of age and younger. Minor children must be accompanied by a family adult while on club property.

Please read all the enclosed information. These documents will help you understand the operation of our club. By signing the application you agree to abide by the rules and regulations of the club.

We look forward to your becoming a member of the Delano Sportsmen's Club. **Mail both copies of the application together with your check for \$250.00.**

Thanks again for considering our club.

Membership Committee
Delano Sportsmen's Club



DELANO SPORTSMEN'S CLUB
P O BOX 394
DELANO MN 55328-0394



RANGE RULES

1. Your ID card must be visibly worn when on the range.
2. A maximum of 2 guests are allowed with a member on the range.
3. Use paper targets only! No cans, glass or other items.
4. Paintball guns are not allowed on the range.
5. Do NOT attach targets to backstop posts.
6. No trap shooting except for organized events.
7. Be sure bullets impact the backstops.
8. Do not dig in the backstops.
9. All firing must be done from the firing lines, 25, 50 or 100 yard lines.
10. The 50 yard target must be moved off the range when not in use.
11. No intermediate targets between established firing lines.
12. Do not shoot at anything on the ground.
13. Pick up your trash, remove targets from backstops, pick up shell casings. Leave the area clean and ready for use by the next member.
14. Check unknown persons for membership cards. Non-members are not allowed to use the range unless accompanied by a member.
15. Do a safety check down range before firing.
16. The use of fully automatic weapons is FORBIDDEN on the range.
17. The gate is to be kept LOCKED at all times.

RANGE SHOOTING HOURS

SHOOTING HOURS HAVE BEEN ESTABLISHED TO SHOW CURTESY TO OUR NEIGHBORS. THEY MUST BE STRICTLY FOLLOWED.

RIFLE AND PISTOL MONDAY-FRIDAY 8:30 A.M. TO 8:30 P.M.

SATURDAY 9:00 A.M. TO 6:00 P.M. SUNDAY 11:00 A.M. TO 6:00 P.M.

TRAPSHOOTING

HAND OR PORTABLE THROWERS ARE NOT ALLOWED AT ANY TIME.

LEAGUE AND PRACTICE HOURS ARE WEDNESDAY AND THURSDAY 5:00 P.M. TO 10:00 P.M.

THE SUMMER LEAGUE STARTS THE LAST WEEK IN APRIL AND LASTS 18 WEEKS. They take off 4th of July week.

Winter league starts the 1st Thursday in December and goes 10 weeks. They take off for Christmas and New Years Eve and Day and if there is bad weather.

YOUTH TRAP

Youth trap takes place Monday and Tuesdays in April, May and the first 2 weeks of June from 4:30 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.

THE RANGE WILL BE CLOSED TO MEMBERS WHEN IN USE BY OTHER GROUPS

DELANOSPORTSMENSCLUB.COM

OFFICIAL WEBSITE OF THE DELANO SPORTSMEN'S CLUB



DELANO SPORTSMENS CLUB

PO BOX 394

DELANO MN 55328

CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS

VERSION 1-12-2026

CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I – NAME

Section 1 The name of this organization shall be the Delano Sportsmen’s Club

ARTICLE II – OFFICE

Section 1 The principal meeting place shall be the Clubhouse located at 4505 County Road 50, Delano, MN 55328

ARTICLE III – OBJECTIVES

Section 1 The practice of true sportsmanship in hunting and fishing and the strenuous and unremitting opposition to illegal, destructive, and unfair methods of taking game.

Section 2 Aid in the restoration of and proper use of our natural resources.

Section 3 To aid in the propagation of fish and game in Delano and vicinity.

Section 4 To provide facilities and instructors for firearms and conservation training to the youth of Delano and the surrounding communities.

ARTICLE IV – MEMBERSHIP

Section 1 Members are required to be US Citizens or legal residents.

Section 2 Applicants must be at least 18 years of age.

Section 3 You cannot be a convicted felon or otherwise forbidden by law to possess or use a firearm.

Section 4 If you have been or are convicted of a crime, other than a felony, precluding you from using a firearm you will not be allowed to use the range while prohibited by law.

Section 5 You cannot be a member of a subversive group or organization whose purpose it is to overthrow or undermine the United States Government.

- Section 6** You will work for and support good sportsmanship in the pursuit of hunting and fishing and abide by State and Federal laws governing the same.
- Section 7** Any person who supports the OBJECTIVES of the club shall be eligible for membership. Voting rights will be accorded to all members holding a current year dues card.
- Section 8** Any person may be expelled, for just cause, from membership by a vote of the majority of the members present at any regular monthly meeting. A written notice detailing the reason and proposed action must be provided to the member five (5) days prior to such meeting.
- Section 9** The dues of the club are payable on or before January 1st every year. There is a grace period until January 31st. Upon reaching the age of 70, if you have a club member for 12 years, a member becomes a lifetime honorary member with full membership privileges. Honorary members are encouraged to volunteer if physically able to do so. Members must notify the Membership Committee Chairman to let them know they qualify.

ARTICLE V – OFFICERS

- Section 1** The officers of the Delano Sportsmen’s Club shall consist of a President, Vice-President, Second Vice-President, Third Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, and Board of Directors (3 previous presidents).

ARTICLE VI – DUTIES OF OFFICERS

- Section 1** The President shall preside and conduct the monthly club meeting in accordance with the agenda from said meeting. As the club’s executive officer, the responsibly include final approval of monies spent by the club and approval of other business pertinent to or on behalf of the operation of the club.
- Section 2** In the absence of the President they shall appoint a club member to perform the duties as described in Article VI, Section 1.
- Section 3** The Secretary shall keep minutes of the monthly club meeting. A typed copy of the minutes shall be provided to the Club Newsletter Editor, in a timely

manner, as specified by the editor for the publication in the next month's newsletter. The Secretary shall maintain file related to the club correspondence and other documents pertaining to the operation of the club and/or other documents as requested by the President. The Secretary shall, at the request and direction of the President, prepare dues cards for disbursement to the general membership in a timely manner to give members adequate time to comply with dues payment procedures. The Secretary will give all financial records to the Treasurer, who is responsible for maintaining all financial records for the club.

Section 4 The Treasurer shall receive all monies and securities of the Club, give receipts for the same, deposit the funds in the bank to be approved by the Executive Board, shall keep such funds so deposited until paid out, give security for the faithful performance of those activities if required by the Executive Board, keep an account of all receipts and disbursements and submit monthly, or whenever called upon to do so by the Executive Board. The Treasurer shall sign all checks, bills, and other documents of financial character, but only after same has been directed by the President or Executive Board.

ARTICLE VII - TERMS OF OFFICE

Section 1 The Secretary and Treasurer are elected for a one-year term but may hold office for an indefinite number of terms if so elected.

Section 2 The President is elected for a one-year term but may hold office for an indefinite number of terms if so elected.

Section 3 When there becomes a vacant Vice President position, each of the other Vice Presidents will move up leaving the Third Vice President open for a new candidate to be voted in by the majority of the club. Vice Presidents are in position until they move up or resign from the position.

ARTICLE VIII – MEETINGS

Section 1 The regular meeting shall be held on the last Tuesday of the month. Meeting begins at 7:00pm. No meeting shall be held on the last Tuesday of December.

Section 2 The Annual Meeting, for election of officers, shall be held on the last Tuesday of January at 7:00pm.

Section 3 The order of business for all meetings will be conducted as follow:

1. Call the meeting to order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Approval of the previous meeting minutes
4. Approval of the Treasurers report
5. Reports from Committees
6. New Business
7. Old Business
8. Election of officers (January Annual Meeting)
9. Adjournment

ARTICLE IX – AMENDMENTS

Section 1 This Constitution may be amended by the vote of a majority of those present at any regular meeting of the club members, PROVIDED

1. That it has been presented in writing and subscribed by seven members, AND,
2. That has been read at a previous meeting of the Club, OR,
3. That a notice, in writing, setting forth such proposed amendment shall have been sent to each member in good standing at least five (5) days previous to the meeting at which the amendment is finally to be voted on.

ARTICLE X – QUORUM

Section 1 Eleven members of the Club shall constitute a quorum.

ARTICLE XI – EXECUTIVE BOARD

Section 1 The Executive Board consists of all current club officers to include three past presidents.

Section 2 It shall be the duty of the Executive Board, and they shall be invested with the power to control and manage the affairs, funds, and finances of the club except that amounts in excess of \$250.00 must be approved by the membership of Board of Directors.

Section 3 To do all lawful things which they may deem expedient to promote the objectives and interests of the Club.

Section 4 No officer of the Club shall receive any compensation for his services or any remission of their duties

ARTICLE XII – RESIGNATION

Section 1 All resignations shall be made in writing to the Secretary, but no resignation shall be accepted while the member offering it is indebted to the Club in any amount, either in dues or otherwise.

ARTICLE XIII – FISCAL YEAR

Section 1 The fiscal year of the club shall be the calendar year, beginning January 1 and ending December 31.

